
 
 

 

 
 
 
 

The Local Authorities and Police and Crime Panels 
(Coronavirus) (Flexibility of Local Authority and Police and 
Crime Panel Meetings) (England and Wales) Regulations 
2020) came into force on Saturday 4 April 2020 to enable 
councils to hold remote committee meetings during the 
Covid 19 pandemic period. This is to ensure local authorities 
can conduct business during this current public health 
emergency. 
 
This meeting of Council will be held remotely under these 
regulations, via the Zoom application and will be webcast to 
ensure accessibility by the public and press. 

Please ask for: 
Alison Marston 

 
9 September 2020 

 
Dear Councillor 
 
 

You are requested to attend a meeting of the WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH 
COUNCIL to be held on Thursday 17 September 2020  at 7.30 pm. 
 

 
Yours faithfully 

 
Corporate Director 
Public Protection, Planning and Governance 
 

A G E N D A 
PART 1 

 

1.   MINUTES  
 

 To confirm as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting held on 20 July 2020 
(previously circulated). 
 

2.   APOLOGIES  
 

 To receive apologies for absence, if any. 
 

3.   PETITIONS  
 

 The Mayor will receive petitions (limited to the first three petitions presented). 
 

4.   QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC  
 

 A period of thirty minutes will be made available for questions to be put by 
Members of the public to Members of the Cabinet on matters for which the 
Council has a responsibility or which affect the Borough. 

Public Document Pack



 

5.   DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS BY MEMBERS  
 

 To note declarations of Members’ disclosable pecuniary interests, non-
disclosable pecuniary interests and non-pecuniary interests in respect of items 
on the Agenda. 
 

6.   ANNOUNCEMENTS  
 

 To receive any announcements from the Mayor, Leader of the Council, Member 
of the Cabinet or the Head of Paid Service. 
 

7.   QUESTIONS BY MEMBERS (Pages 5 - 6) 
 

 For a period of up to thirty minutes, a Member of the Council who has given prior 
notice in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 15, may ask (a) the Mayor, (b) 
the Leader of the Council or (c) a Member of the Cabinet a question on any 
matter in relation to which the Council has powers or duties or which affects the 
Borough. 
 

The questions received for this meeting are attached.  A Member asking a 
question may ask, without giving notice, one supplementary question of the 
Member to whom the first question was asked.  The supplementary question 
must arise directly out of the reply. 
 

8.   NOTICE OF MOTION (Pages 7 - 8) 
 

 To consider notices of motions submitted under Procedure Rule 16 in such order 
as the Mayor shall direct.  The motions received for this meeting are attached. 
 

9.   WELWYN HATFIELD COUNCIL RESPONSE TO COVID-19 PANDEMIC (Pages 
9 - 22) 
 

 Report of the Chief Executive detailing the Council’s response to Covid-19. 
 

10.   REVIEW OF HACKNEY CARRIAGE FARES (Pages 23 - 34) 
 

 Report of the Corporate Director (Public Protection, Planning and Governance) 
on the consultation, steps and processes undertaken on taxi fares and tariffs, 
with a view to review and update the current taxi fares in Welwyn Hatfield 
borough. 
 

11.   APPOINTMENT OF THE INTERIM CHIEF EXECUTIVE (Pages 35 - 38) 
 

 Report of the Human Resources Manager on the appointment of the new Interim 
Chief Executive. 
 

12.   APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT REMUNERATION PANEL MEMBERS 
(Pages 39 - 42) 
 

 Report of the Chief Executive on the Council’s agreement to appoint 
Independent Remuneration Panel members to the Council’s panel. 
 

13.   APPOINTMENTS TO COMMITTEES AND GROUPS (Pages 43 - 44) 
 

 To approve the appointments of Members to Committees and Groups. 



 

14.   URGENT MATTERS  
 

 To consider any matters of urgency subject to the agreement of the Mayor in 
accordance with Procedure Rule 5.1(s). 
 

 
Circulation: The Mayor and Members of the Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council 

Corporate Management Team 
Press and Public (except Part II Items) 

 
If you require any further information about this Agenda please contact Alison 
Marston, Governance Services on 01707 357444 or email – 
democracy@welhat.gov.uk  
 

mailto:democracy@welhat.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 

Part I 
Item No: 7 

 
WELWYN HATFIELD COUNCIL 
COUNCIL MEETING – 17 SEPTEMBER 2020 
 
COUNCIL PROCEDURE RULE NO. 15 QUESTIONS – QUESTIONS BY 
MEMBERS  
 
Notice of the following questions has been received in accordance with Council 
Procedure Rule No 15:- 
 
 
1. Question to the Leader from Councillor Kieran Thorpe 
 

“As we slowly head towards the end of an unprecedented year of uncertainty, 
does the leader agree that planning and preparing for universal postal voting in the 
2021 local elections is a sensible preparation to undertake now to ensure elections 
can take place safely or at all in less than 9 months time? 

Page 5

Agenda Item 7



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Part I 
Item No: 8 

 
WELWYN HATFIELD COUNCIL 
COUNCIL – 17 SEPTEMBER 2020 
 
NOTICE OF MOTIONS UNDER PROCEDURE RULE 16 
 
To consider the following notice of motions submitted under Procedure Rule 16:- 

 
1. The following motion has been submitted by Councillor Glyn Hayes and will 

be seconded by Councillor Kieran Thorpe:- 
 

“This Council notes that there is a nationwide shortage of Accessible homes and 
homes suitable for adaption. 
 

This Council also notes that in the recently published “Planning for the future” 
white paper, there is no mention of the needs of disabled people or the need to 
providing homes suitable for an ageing population. 
 

In light of this this Council resolves: 
  

 To carry out research to determine how much Accessible housing is 
needed in Welwyn Hatfield. 

 For the Equalities Lead Officer to work with the Head of Planning and 
review our planning policies focusing on a need for Accessible/adaptable 
homes and take their recommendations to CPPP. 

 And for the Leader of the Council to write to the Housing Secretary Robert 
Jenrick MP to remind him of the need for Accessible housing due to a 
nationwide shortage and that if the Government is truly committed to 
planning for good living environments, it must include a plan for the needs 
of the disabled and elderly into the "Planning for the future" paper and any 
other planning papers in the future..” 

Page 7

Agenda Item 8



This page is intentionally left blank



Part I 
Main authors: Rob Bridge and Nick Long 
Leader: Cllr Tony Kingsbury 
All Wards 

 
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
COUNCIL 17 SEPTEMBER 2020 
REPORT OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

WELWYN HATFIELD COUNCIL RESPONSE TO COVID-19 PANDEMIC 

1 Executive Summary 

1.1 This report provides Council with a further update on the activities undertaken 
in response to the Covid-19 pandemic. This remains a continuously evolving 
international situation and once again this report presents information 
available at the time of writing. Councillors will be aware of the previous 
update reports provided to Cabinet and Full Council and this report sets out 
significant further activity undertaken by the council in connection with the 
Covid-19 pandemic.  

2 Recommendation(s) 

2.1 That Councillors note the content of the report, the continued impacts of the 
pandemic on the Council’s operations and the work undertaken to date.  

3 Explanation 

3.1 Councillors and officers continue to reprioritise workloads and activities in 
order to respond to this emergency; and although services are moving ahead 
with recovery efforts and regaining a level of normality, officers remain vigilant 
to ensure we are prepared for any “second peak” or tightening of measures 
necessitating a return to response led activities.  

3.2 As the borough’s elected representatives, Councillors have also been 
essential in ensuring the Council is able to continue to deliver its critical 
services and to support multi-agency partners and the community. As per the 
regulations, and to minimise risk, the Council continues to run council 
business through remote meetings. 

3.3 The sections below provide key updates on the current situation regarding our 
priorities and objectives. 

3.4 Our Community 

3.4.1 Safe Communities 

Officers continue to represent the Council on various Hertfordshire-wide 
Covid-19 related groups which feed back into the wider Local Resilience 
Forum structures. 

In addition, the Safety Advisory team is working with all event organisers to 
ensure Covid secure events take place. Over recent weeks, the Safety 
Advisory Team has received notifications of events across the borough and 

Page 9

Agenda Item 9



some of these have required intervention from the Environmental Health and 
Licensing teams as well as partners such as the Police, Public Health England 
and HCC Public Health to ensure safe arrangements are in place. One 
particular event resulted in several multi agency Incident Management team 
meetings as well as out of hours site visits over the weekends. Several 
notifications in respect of events that are planned to take place in 2021 are 
also being received and therefore the team have been assessing documents 
and liaising with the organisers to ensure, where it is safe to do so, events go 
ahead. 

The review of Caravan site conditions is continuing to ensure that they are 
consistent and meet Health and Safety requirements. 

The Hackney Carriage Team has continued to operate and deliver a full 
service as there was no provision in the emergency legislation for the licence 
applications or renewals to be deferred. However as working arrangements 
did change slightly, learning has been taken and the team are now looking to 
introduce a new appointment system for drivers for use in the future. The 
Hackney Carriage team is also supporting a countywide scheme to support 
“Covid secure” cabs to help give assurance to the taxi trade and public. 

The Community Safety Partnership (CSP) ensured targeted messaging went 
out to residents via online channels to give advice on how to keep themselves 
and their loved ones safe during lockdown. Key priority areas included 
domestic abuse, child safeguarding, mental health and anti-social behaviour. 
The CSP also continued to work closely with partners to ensure the safety of 
the borough. Key colleagues met weekly to discuss new trends and current 
issues faced due to Covid-19 and how to adapt our approach as/when 
government advice changed. A daily CSP news bulletin sent key information 
and updates on services across various networks helping to keep everyone 
informed.  

The Community Partnerships Team organised training for youth professionals 
on ‘Supporting Children/Young People with Anxiety and How to Stay Safe’. 
This was in response to heightened levels of anxiety within young people due 
to Covid-19.  

3.4.2 Public Health 

The Public Health and Protection team continue to provide Covid-19 secure 
advice, support and guidance to all our businesses and organisations. 
Regular visits are undertaken to ensure social distancing and other 
requirements are in place, so that customers and staff are safe when visiting 
or working locally. 

The team is working closely with colleagues across Hertfordshire to support 
the local outbreak plan and ensure we can deliver any required track and 
trace investigations and enforcement. We are currently exploring the 
implications of the announcements about changes to Public Health England 
and how this may impact on the local arrangements for contact tracing. 

Officers from Public Health and Protection have also been representing the 
authority on various Covid work streams across Hertfordshire such as 
Hertfordshire Health Protection Board, District Outbreak Management Group 
and the Hertfordshire Business Group.  

Page 10



Welwyn Hatfield is also leading on the task and finish group in respect of 
working with and supporting Universities and colleges to be Covid-secure.  

Other work tasks which the team are actively involved in include:  

a) creating and maintaining registers of high-risk settings  

b) taking action to prevent and manage outbreaks in certain settings 

c) developing plans and procedures in respect of contact tracing in 
complex situations handed down from PHE/NHS Test and Trace 
where requested,  

d) developing plans and deliver on prevention and enforcement for 
certain workplaces  

e) lead contact tracing and outbreak management for certain settings 

f) ensuring leisure facilities are COVID-19 secure in partnership with 
the Health and Safety Executive. 

3.4.3 Sport & Leisure 

In line with government guidance, Hatfield Swim and Leisure Centre reopened 
from 25 July with a swim, gym and fitness class offer to customers who pre-
book with GLL and Covid secure measures in place.  

A pre-opening visit was undertaken at Hatfield Swim Centre and a number of 
control measures were put in place. These include separate access to the 
gym and swimming pool, restricted lanes for swimming and lockers removed 
from use.  

The High Ropes course at Stanborough Park was also inspected prior to 
opening and various Covid-19 control measures have been implemented 
which includes social distancing of ‘bubbles’ and use of hand sanitizer before 
access. 

Panshanger Golf Course was re-opened from 27 May and has continued to 
trade well since. 

All four parks and playing fields managed by GLL have remained open, with 
cleaning and grounds maintenance work taking place. Open Water Swimming 
at Stanborough south lake restarted from 11 July. 

The new Splashlands facility successfully opened to the public for the first 
time on 30 July and has proved extremely popular. The Splashlands operator, 
GLL ('Better'), has set a maximum capacity of 160 people to ensure safe 
social distancing can be maintained. They have also introduced a booking 
system on the Better UK app to enable customers to book in advance. 

The Hive has recently reopened its doors to centre users with a positive 
number of bookings for activities starting back at the centre. On-going reviews 
to phase in other activities such as soft play at Freddie’s Den will be 
considered following extensive risk assessments based on Government 
guidance, only re-opening if it is absolutely safe to do so. 

The community bus service and Shop Mobility remain suspended, although 
this is constantly being reviewed considering many factors, but primarily 
focused on ensuring the service is safe for users should the community bus 

Page 11



service be re-introduced. It is hoped a limited service may be in place from 14 
September.  

Activities and projects such as the girls Dance project moved online with 
sessions taking place via Zoom. Herts Sport Partnership also worked with the 
Council to introduce a fitness boot camp for young people at KGV Playing 
Fields. 

As part of the Big Summer 2020 Campaign, the Community Partnerships 
team delivered Fast Traxx events, Mini Golf, Graffiti Art and Xplorer sessions 
all aimed at families, children and young people. All events were delivered in 
line with government guidance and resident feedback demonstrates that they 
were truly grateful to the council for giving local people something to do during 
this time. 

There was also ‘Welwyn Hatfield’s Big Picnic’ which was a borough-wide 
initiative to engender community spirit and encourage families to go and have 
a picnic in their local open space. Additionally, there was a live calendar of 
other activities from partners available on the website. 

3.4.4 Art & Culture 

Campus West cinema reopened its doors on 4 July with two screens 
operating at reduced capacity and adhering to the government’s new safety 
guidance. Humphreys Café has reopened upstairs, serving drinks and pre-
packaged food, with customer routes clearly marked out throughout the 
building. Roller City and Soft Play remain closed at this time and an update 
will be provided at the next Campus West Member Panel meeting.  

The museum service has been successful in obtaining a small grant of £750 
from the Hertfordshire Association for Museums. This has contributed towards 
the production of virtual tours of both the Mill Green Mill and the Roman Bath 
House which are now freely available online across all digital channels. Flour 
sales to the public have continued in recent months and both pre-booked 
guided Mill tours for up to six people at a time, and a new grab and go cream 
tea service, started on 11 August. The Mill Green Mill has been entered in the 
Hertfordshire Association of Museums ‘Object of the Year’ competition.  

A virtual teddy bear fun day was held on 26 August with activities released 
online on the hour. These included a short-filmed tour with bear spotting at 
Mill Green, a virtual picnic, short story telling and a virtual teddy bear parade.  

The Roman Bath House remain closed to the public at this time, as 
maintaining social distancing is a key challenge, given the design of the site. 

3.5 Our Environment 

3.5.1 Clean Streets, Waste & Recycling 

The Council’s new Streetscene contractor, Urbaser, has continued to work 
well, however the volume of waste collected at the kerbside and street 
cleansing waste continues to be higher than the same period last year.  

From 2 November, Urbaser will be providing households with a weekly 
separate food collection. A new green 23 litre kerbside food caddy is being 
delivered to households in the borough. 

Page 12



3.5.2 Green Spaces 

Landscape and Tree Officers and our tree contractors are out-and-about as 
normal, making sure that trees are healthy and safe, particularly as a result of 
wet and windy conditions. 

The Council’s grounds maintenance contractor, Continental Landscape (CLL), 
is completing all their programmed grounds maintenance work as per 
specification and schedule. 

3.5.3 Parking 

On-street and off-street parking are operating as normal. Car parks have been 
busier in August compared to July as more shops have reopened, however, 
there is still a significant reduction in the level of commuter parking.  

Parking Services have continued their work on consultations of new traffic 
regulation orders and parking improvement programme.  

3.6 Our Housing 

3.6.1 Quality Landlord 

We are continuing to provide support and advice to tenants with rent arrears. 
The number of new Universal Credit claims has now returned to pre-Covid 
levels and overall rent arrears and rent income collection performance has 
remained strong. 

The ban on evictions was due to end in August 2020, however the ban has 
been extended by the Government to 20 September 2020. Eviction is only 
pursued as a last resort, after all other options to engage with the tenant have 
been exhausted. The teams are working with legal services to prepare cases 
under the new reactivation notice requirements and to ensure that the courts 
have a list of our most urgent cases that will require priority listing after the 
extension is relaxed. From a community safety perspective, we will continue 
to use other tools such as closure orders and injunctions to address ASB, 
where necessary. With effect from 7 September 2020, Independent Living 
Officers will be returning to work from their respective sheltered schemes two 
days per week. The presence of officers on scheme sites will be phased back 
to increased service levels, providing a reassuring presence at the schemes 
across the borough.  

All Sheltered Schemes have been visited by the risk and resilience team 
together with the relevant Scheme Manager to assess Covid secure 
arrangements and ensure adequate control measures are in place 

3.6.2 Housing Need 

Hotel accommodation continues to be provided to homeless households and 
multi-agency groups have been set up to ensure that both housing and 
support needs can be met for people who were formerly rough sleeping or at 
risk of rough sleeping. A funding bid has been submitted to MHCLG under 
their Next Steps programme; the council’s bid seeks funding to expand our 
Housing First project, as well as making alternative provision for the night 
shelter, as this can no longer be provided at Queensway House, due to the 
rules about shared accommodation.  

Page 13



The team is working closely with the households who were formerly 
accommodated in the Jim McDonald Centre, in order to help find long-term 
solutions for their housing and other issues, so that they can get their lives 
back on track. Those individuals who have not yet been rehoused are being 
accommodated in council temporary accommodation until permanent 
solutions can be found. 

Our lettings service has resumed allocating homes across the board, except 
for households which are currently unable to move due to coronavirus 
infection/self-isolation. 

3.6.3 Affordable Homes 

We continue to make progress with our housing development activity, 
although there have been some delays on construction sites due to Covid19. 
We continue to purchase homes through the open market purchase schemes. 

We have started on site at Minster House, where we will be delivering 90 new 
homes for older people. The construction period will be slightly longer, due to 
the provisions made on site to ensure adequate safety measures. 

3.6.4 Housing Quality 

The backlog of responsive repairs that was created due to COVID-related 

access difficulties and furloughing of Mears staff is being addressed and the 

team is reviewing any outstanding requests to resolve them as soon as 

possible. During the height of the pandemic the repairs service was reduced 

to emergencies only, based on government guidance. Capacity is now 

virtually back to normal and following the easing of lockdown restrictions, all 

types of repairs are being carried out, unless a household is self-isolating, or 

residents refuse access on Covid-related grounds. The team is also receiving 

unusually high levels of service requests and queries following the ending of 

lockdown, due to pent-up demand. There were some key staff member 

changes just before and during lockdown and recruitment has recently taken 

place, with the new starters joining the council over the next few weeks. 

Temporary staff are being brought in to help meet the high demand for repairs 

whilst new starters settle into their roles. 

The robust procedures put in place to address overdue annual gas safety 
checks were successful with 100% compliance at the time of writing. The 
programme of new boiler and heating system installations has re-commenced. 

Planned major works such as kitchens and bathrooms have re-commenced 
with an accelerated programme in place to catch up. 

The private sector housing team is undertaking routine inspections and also 
licensing inspections, as well as moving forward with some large-scale 
prosecutions, which have been ongoing since prior to Covid. 

Much proactive work has been done to provide advice to private tenants and 
landlords/letting agents, about how to reduce the risk of Covid-19 in shared 
accommodation settings. 

3.7 Our Economy 

3.7.1 Sustainable Growth 

Page 14



Local Plan hearing sessions on submitted village sites took place in July and 
August. The inspector has also written to the Council requesting an updated 
timetable to conclude the examination. Officers have advised that an interim 
report would help councillors to make a final decision about additional sites.  

Herts LEP prepared a Draft Economic Recovery Plan, which builds on the 
content of the Local Industrial Strategy and considers the implications of 
coronavirus. This will be used to help prepare an Economic Recovery 
Strategy and a Town Centre Recovery Strategy for the borough. 

The new "Pavement Licence" regime, which is to be administered by local 
authorities, and designed to make it easier for premises serving food and 
drink, such as bars, restaurants and pubs to seat and serve customers 
outdoors through temporary changes to planning procedures and alcohol 
licensing has been enacted and we are able to receive and process 
applications. 

The Government has introduced a raft of new permitted development rights 
that allow commercial buildings to be demolished and rebuilt for housing, 
blocks of flats to be made taller, detached, semi-detached and terraced 
housing to be made taller and town centre units to switch between shops, 
financial services, cafes/restaurants and offices as they wish. 

The Government is consulting on a Planning White Paper that proposes a 
shorter timetable to prepare Local Plans that identify growth, renewal and 
protection areas, and a much faster process for schemes in growth and 
renewal areas. It places a strong emphasis on beautiful buildings and places 
to help overcome opposition to new development. It proposes to combine 
Section 106 and CIL into a single Infrastructure Fund that includes affordable 
housing. 

3.7.2 Investment & Regeneration 

Regeneration schemes have continued to press ahead including the Multi-
Storey Car Park in Hatfield and Highview.  Link Drive development received 
planning approval at the end of July and the development partner, Lovell, is 
working with the council to mobilise pre-development work.  

3.7.3 Neighbourhood and Town Centres 

As lockdown measures eased, we introduced Street Stewards in Hatfield town 
centre. Their role was to assist the shops and businesses in enforcing social 
distancing and ensuring everybody was safe. At this time, BID Ambassadors 
were operating in Welwyn Garden City town centre.  

3.7.4 Business Friendly 

The team is progressing its annual grant scheme and finalising an Eastern 
New Energy project to help local businesses become more energy efficient 
and enter the low carbon market 

The Licensing team are aware of the current difficulties faced by many 
businesses and, as such, are taking a pragmatic and flexible approach, while 
ensuring the licensing objectives are safeguarded. In the event that premises 
are found to be breaching licensing conditions, arrangements will be put in 
place to hold hearings of the licensing committee using remote access 
technology.  

Page 15



The licensing team also continues to provide a full service to customers by the 
timely issue of new or revised licences, advice and guidance and Safety 
Advisory Team (SAT) team partnership working. Following the reopening of 
our pubs and restaurants we have visited those that require advice or support 
as well as visiting those for which complaints have been received about lack 
of Covid secure arrangements. Ultimately, we want to ensure the public are 
confident in visiting these premises and are kept safe whilst they do so. 

The Business and Planning Act was quickly introduced, and our procedures, 
local conditions and applications were rapidly made available on our website 
so that businesses could apply. This is a streamlined process to allow 
businesses to secure these licences as soon as possible and where they are 
deemed to have been granted, allow these licences to remain in place for a 
year, but not beyond 30 September 2021. It allows premises serving food and 
drink, such as bars, restaurants and pubs to seat and serve customers 
outdoors through temporary changes to planning procedures and alcohol 
licensing. There are changes to the alcohol licensing regime, which will allow 
operators with existing alcohol on-sales licences to also serve alcohol for 
consumption off the premises and to make deliveries. 

The team have worked closely with the Welwyn Garden City BID and all other 
high streets across the borough, to ensure they have ongoing support from 
the Council during this time. 

Working in partnership with colleagues across Hertfordshire and with Better 
Business for All (BBfA), the Environmental Health team have developed many 
guides and checklists to assist businesses in becoming Covid secure. These 
are reviewed regularly to make sure they are up to date and continue to be 
relevant as well as adding information as the situation evolves. Developing 
guides together has ensured a consistency of enforcement approach to new 
legislation and changing guidance. The team have also developed guidance 
for hairdressers and barbers and for the beauty sector to assist them with 
preparing for re-opening after lockdown. Guidance is available on Herts LEP 
website. An officer from the team represented Welwyn Hatfield as a key 
panellist on a beauty webinar delivered to over 70 businesses in the UK. 
Other panel members included the Chair of BABTAC (British Association of 
Beauty Therapy & Cosmetology) and a representative from Russell Cooke 
Partners, a leading law firm. 

The government wrote to all councils requesting the business grant schemes 
to close on 28 August. The team has done extremely well in making business 
grant payment to 1,135 businesses and paid out £15.3m (98% of funding 
available). The Discretionary Business Grant Scheme has also closed. A total 
of £800k (100% of this funding) was paid to support 72 businesses; the team 
has received very positive feedback. 

Work at the new HatTech Business Centre is progressing well and is due to 
open later this month. 

3.8 Our Council 

3.8.1 Virtual committee meetings continue to be held as required and the Council 
has very successfully arranged other virtual events for Councillors and 
Officers, including all staff briefing and members’ training and development 
events. Members and Officers are becoming much more familiar with the 

Page 16



process. The new Overview and Scrutiny Committee (OSC) has met and we 
have commenced our more streamlined governance process, through the use 
of Cabinet Member decision notices. 

3.8.2 All our public meetings are currently being webcast and the viewing figures 
are showing a good reach.  The meetings that were webcast pre-Covid have 
seen an increase in viewing figures, and ones that are newly webcast have 
equally pleasing numbers tuning in: all contributing to the accessibility and 
transparency of democracy.  

3.8.3 Given the changes in the law to “pavement licences” and the increase desire 
to hold events, and changes in events legislation the team will be working with 
members of the licensing committee to make sure that we are able to hold 
licensing hearings at short notice, should the need arise.  

3.8.4 Equality & Fairness 

In anticipation of more staff returning to the workplace, managers are required 
to ensure that the process is managed robustly, including taking account of 
the individual needs of staff. Our internal comms campaign is reinforcing this 
message. 

3.8.5 Customer First 

Reception was reopened from 29 July and protective screens, floor markings 
and signages have been installed. A booking system has been introduced to 
enable customers to make an appointment prior to coming into the reception. 

All teams are now working through any accumulated backlog of cases in a 

priority-based way.  

As instructed by the Food Standards Agency (FSA), we are not undertaking 

planned routine food hygiene inspections in order to prioritise Covid-19 health 

protection work. However, this is now under review following recent 

correspondence from the FSA. 

Other reported public health and protection matters are being worked through 

as quickly as possible, with priority given to the most severe and urgent 

cases. Taking account of the additional demands on public health resources 

due to Covid-19, reports are prioritised according to risk and officers continue 

to work hard to respond to all cases in a timely manner. 

The coronavirus lockdown resulted in a slight reduction in planning 

applications, but an increase in pre-application requests, estate management 

applications and tree preservation order applications. Performance for Q1 

April-June was 70% of majors and 87% of minor applications determined 

within set timescales. There have, however, been some delays in validation 

which we are working to address. 

There were no category 1 enforcement complaints in Q1, although the volume 

of enforcement investigations for other categories remains high. Each case is 

prioritised according to its likely impact and progressed on that basis.  

The council and staff have continued to carry out their roles from home and as 

we enter the next stage of recovery some staff and teams are returning to the 

office.  However, it is not possible to completely house all employees in the 

Page 17



Campus East Offices in a Covid secure way and meet the Covid-19 

regulations. Work has already started to enable staff who need to come back 

to the office (as they can no longer work from home) to return to their office; 

however given the current restrictions and the potential for needing to respond 

to any upsurge in cases as we head into the winter it will not be possible for 

entire teams to return to their offices. It remains that the roll out of Microsoft 

“teams”, zoom and other remote access technology means that staff can work 

effectively whilst not being in the office and at this point in time it is not yet 

possible to set a date when all teams will be back into the Campus East 

Offices. 

3.8.6 Employer of Choice 

Ongoing work continues corporately as we review services returning to their 
full capacity. There remains a mixture of working arrangements to co-ordinate 
as this unfolds. We continue with remote recruitment and have seen an 
increase in applications. Most vacancies have been successfully filled in this 
way. 

Sessions, in respect of the mental health aspects of remote working, have 
been delivered to staff and managers. 

Employees have consistently risen to the challenge of keeping services 
operating and new ways of working and volunteering to undertake alternative 
duties when required. 

Following the feedback from the recent staff survey, the generic Covd-19 risk 
assessments have been reviewed with minor changes, which include the 
change in guidance that allows vulnerable individuals to return to work if they 
cannot work from home and allows the use of fans and hand dryers.  

The relevant Government guidance documents have also been updated to 
refer to the most current version and we are working with the communications 
team to promote the guidance and this includes a separate folder on the first 
page of eTeam with all Covid-19 documents and guidance. Posters have 
been displayed in all kitchens advising staff of the change in Fire and First Aid 
procedures. 

The Risk and Resilience Team have produced guidance for Managers and 
employees to support their return to work and this has been reinforced in the 
weekly staff communication updates and in the risk assessments. The comms 
team prepared and disseminated a presentation for all staff on the new control 
measures in place, including video footage of the employees’ ‘journey’ 
through the building at Campus East. The return to work focus is on dialogue 
between employee and Manager giving an opportunity to identify any 
concerns and ensuring all the information available to prepare for their return 
to the workplace.  

4 Legal Implication(s) 

4.1 The Council is a Category 1 responder for the purposes of the Civil 
Contingencies Act 2004, meaning the Council has a duty to work with partners 
to plan for and recover from emergencies, and also to keep critical services 
going. 

Page 18



4.2 There is now a considerable cannon of Coronavirus specific legislation and 
guidance which changes on a frequent basis, it remains imperative that as the 
council works within the context of the pandemic as a service provided, 
employer or enforcing authority, that the correct legislation and guidance is 
used. And of course, the Council continues to find ways to ensure it can 
continue to meet its legal obligations and duties, balanced against the 
requirement to work in different ways during the pandemic emergency period.  

4.3 The Risk and Resilience team continue to review and amend our generic 
Covid-19 risk assessments. This is an ongoing process and needs regular 
reviewing to ensure our assessments accurately reflect changes to national 
guidelines. They are also working with our Communications colleagues to 
ensure accurate and timely dissemination of the information to all staff. 
Guidance is available to Managers and employees to support their return to 
work and this has been reinforced in the weekly staff communication updates 
and in the risk assessments. The team have been heavily involved around the 
procedures for reopening reception facilities and will be maintaining an 
ongoing review to ensure that procedures can be adjusted as necessary. 
Regular building inspections are also being carried out to ensure Covid 
security measures are all working as intended and that there are no other 
issues occurring while the building is largely empty. 

5 Financial Implication(s) 

5.1 A detailed report on the impact of Covid-19 on the council’s finances was 
reported to August Cabinet,  

5.2 The total estimated budget impact due to Covid-19 amounts to £5.3m.  

5.3 In terms of the General Fund, the estimated impact amounts to £4.8m. Taking 
into account the government support available to date of £1.5m and plus the 
£0.4m Covid-19 reserve set up at the end of 19/20, the net impact is around 
£2.9m. The income guarantee, along with the phased repayment of collection 
fund deficit over 3 years, will help to reduce the budget impact further.  

5.4 All the grant funding element announced so far is for General Fund only, 
therefore the estimated budget impact on the HRA remains at £0.5m (of which 
the HRA revenue pressure is £0.168m). However, it should be noted that as 
referenced in the section above, the government has temporarily extended the 
time period to spend the right to buy receipts. 

5.5 The financial implications will continue to be monitored as part of the budget 
monitoring process. 

6 Risk Management Implications 

6.1 A strategic risk is now in place covering the impacts of Covid-19. This is 
assessed as highly likely to have major impacts, including finance and local 
economy, community wellbeing and effects on services, staff and corporate 
projects, and hence the achievement of some corporate objectives.  

6.2 Managers are also addressing Covid-19 impacts within their operational risk 
registers. Moving forward, there are opportunities to integrate some of the 

Page 19



changes to working methods into the wider modernisation and transformation 
agenda which the Council has in place. 

We have ensured that we keep a healthy stock of PPE in preparation for a 
potential second wave later on in the year. 

7 Security and Terrorism Implication(s) 

7.1 There are no direct implications; however, guidance has been published to 
local authorities highlighting the risk of fraud in connection with recovery from 
the pandemic. 

8 Procurement Implication(s) 

8.1  The Council has been acting in accordance with Government guidance to 
work with and support its contractors during this current pandemic. 

9 Climate Change Implication(s) 

9.1 The social distancing requirements of the response to the pandemic have 
resulted in the majority of staff still working remotely and the amount of face to 
face contact with our customers reducing in line with these requirements. This 
has therefore resulted in fewer vehicles being used for work-related tasks and 
a subsequent drop in work-related vehicle emissions.  

9.2 There is now a balance to be struck in terms of positive impacts on climate 
change by reduced commuting and the desire for some employees to return 
to an office environment. These are matters which the council’s climate 
change sub-group will wish to consider in light of the council having declared 
a climate emergency. 

9.3 Work continues to record carbon savings arising from the pandemic response 
in order to feed into and influence our Climate Change Strategy. 

10 Human Resources Implication(s) 

10.1 The majority of employees have been able to continue working as normal 
throughout the emergency. There have been some impacts due to some 
employees being required to home school their children, but this has been 
mitigated by working to agree more flexible working arrangements. As schools 
return and the government message “that it is safe to return to the workplace” 
ramps up we will be working with employees and managers to support those 
who wish to return to the office working environment. During the pandemic 
period there have been very low reported employee sickness absences. 

10.2 We are working with our BAME employees to address their particular 
concerns and needs to ensure all staff are kept safe. 

11 Health and Wellbeing Implication(s) 

11.1 Home working may have positive benefits, but we are also aware of the 
negative issues that can result from remote working, such as being away from 

Page 20



colleagues, adopting a different routine and the feeling of isolation. We will 
support employees who wish to return to an office working environment to 
make sure that they can do this safely. 

The risk and Resilience team have undertaken health and safety assessments 
at a number of Council facilities prior to them reopening to ensure they have 
adequate Covid secure arrangements in place. 

12 Communication and Engagement Implication(s) 

12.1 The Corporate Communications team continue to co-ordinate all Covid-19 
communication activity across the Council. Links to the multi-agency 
communications cell as part of the LRF structure ensure we are able to 
provide consistent, co-ordinated and timely communications to staff, 
members, local residents and businesses.  

The Healthy Hub website is now live and regular bulletins are being sent out 
by the team to ensure that our residents, members, local health providers and 
community groups have access to up to date information on health and 
wellbeing. The added benefit of the Welwyn Hatfield Healthy Hub is that the 
information is also from a local perspective and can provide our residents with 
access and links to clubs, support groups and activities that are occurring in 
their neighbourhood.  

13 Link to Corporate Priorities 

13.1 The subject of this report is linked to all the Council’s priorities. 

14 Equality and Diversity 

14.1 As set out in the report, critical services and provision for vulnerable people 
are in operation and information on how to access help is widely available, in 
a range of media, at borough, county and national level. 

14.2 On the basis that the changes to other ‘business as usual’ operations are 
currently temporary and in response to a national public health emergency, 
Equality Impact Assessments have not been completed for each of these 
changes made. Where future Government regulations or identified learning 
requires changes to be more long term, this approach will be re-considered.  

 
 
 

Rob Bridge, Chief Executive 
 

Nick Long, Corporate Director, Public Protection, Planning and Governance  
 

Ka Ng, Corporate Director, Resources, Environment and Cultural Services 
 

Simone Chinman Russell, Corporate Director, Housing and Communities 
 

September 2020  

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



- 1 - 

Part I 
Main author: Cheryl Bridges 
Executive Member: Councillor Fiona 

Thomson 
All Wards 

 
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
COUNCIL 17TH SEPTEMBER 2020 
REPORT OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR (PUBLIC PROTECTION, PLANNING 
AND GOVERNANCE) 
 
REVIEW OF HACKNEY CARRIAGE FARES 
 
 
1.1.1 Executive Summary 

1.1 This report explains the consultation, steps and processes undertaken on taxi 
fares and tariffs, with a view to reviewing and updating the current taxi fares in 
Welwyn Hatfield borough. 

 
1.2 Following requests from hackney carriage drivers, a review has been undertaken 

into the fare structure for Welwyn Hatfield Borough.  The last fares adopted were 
back in 2008, 12 years ago and it is now timely that this review takes place. 
 

1.3 The Hackney Carriage Team completed a postal survey which started on 27th 
April 2020 and ended on 31st May 2020. The team consulted with 178 current 
licensed Welwyn Hatfield hackney carriage drivers.  Of those 178 hackney 
carriage drivers, 60 responses were received (33.7%). 

 
1.4 A summary of the responses is as follows;  

 

 The majority of respondents were in favour that Tariff 1 (appendix 1) 
should be increased by 50 pence and the base line distance be lowered 
from 900 yards to 525 yards.  

 The respondents were also in favour that the subsequent mileage fare 
stay the same at 20 pence, but that the subsequent distance be lowered to 
150 yards. 

 A strong majority of respondents were in favour of continuing the rates for   
waiting times with no changes and also for Tariff 3 charges being kept the 
same.   

 There was also agreement that fouling charges be kept the same as they 
currently are. 

 
1.5 These responses are explained in more detail in the explanation section below. 
 
2 Recommendation(s) 

2.1 Council agrees to the proposed fare increases as set out in Appendix 4 of this 
report. 

 
2.2 Council agrees that the start date for the new fares be set as the 1st December 

2020 
 
 

Page 23

Agenda Item 10



- 2 - 

3 Explanation 

  
3.1 Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council (WHBC) is responsible for the licensing and 

enforcement of the Hackney Carriage and Private Hire trade (the taxi trade) 
within its district. As part of this obligation, the authority shall produce and adopt 
a dedicated policy setting out the reasonable terms and conditions expected to 
be adhered to by those working within the trade. 

 
3.2 This includes a reasonable fare structure for those who use a taxi meter which 

also is representative as reasonable to ensure the safety and wellbeing of the 
public who use these services within the Welwyn Hatfield community. 

 
3.3 The current taxi fares structure was adopted in 2008.  In 2016, a consultation 

was undertaken to enable a review of the fares following requests.  At this time, it 
was decided there was not sufficient support, due to a minimal number of 
responses received, to be able to review the 2008 fares and this did not proceed 
any further.  

 
3.4 It has now been some time since the fares were last reviewed and further 

requests have been made to increase the current fares.  The reason for the 
request is that drivers now have to accommodate the increase in associated 
costs. 

 
3.5 The Hackney Carriage team therefore commenced a consultation process with 

the drivers in order to find out what fares they believed to be reasonable based 
on their operating costs.  The consultation took the form of a paper questionnaire 
which was sent out to all 178 licenced hackney carriage drivers. 
 

3.6 The consultation took place for one month between 27th April and 31st May 2020. 
In this time, a total of 60 drivers responded by post and by email with their 
feedback on the fares.  This amounts to 33.7% of the drivers. 

 
3.7 This is a reasonable amount of responses and it is believed that the responses 

are a good representation of what the trade require to enable a review of the 
fares to proceed to the next stage of consultation. 

 
3.8 Taxi fares are calculated using a taximeter and the meter shows the maximum 

fare that can be charged at the end of a journey. The fare is based upon the time 
of day and distance travelled and time taken. 
 

3.9 The taxi fares adopted by WHBC, consists of two separate components; the 
initial charge and the charging unit which is a specified amount for a fixed 
distance. At present, the permitted initial charge (1.A and B Appendix 1) is £2.50 
for the first 900 yards (0.51 miles) or part thereof, and a charging unit of 20 
pence for every 170 yards thereafter (0.9 miles) (1.C Appendix 1). 

 
3.10 The proposed increase is to raise the initial charge to £3.00 for the first 525 yards 

(0.29 miles) or part thereof, and a reduction in the length of the charging unit to 
150 yards (0.08 miles), although maintaining the price of each charging unit at 20 
pence per unit.  

 
3.11 The responses from the consultation were collated into a spreadsheet (Appendix 

2).  Three variables were calculated to show the total price of a journey for 

Page 24



- 3 - 

distances of 2 miles (an average local journey) and also at 5 miles and 10 miles.  
These can be seen in columns 8, 9 and 10 (highlighted light green) of the data 
collection. 

 
3.12 The median requested increase from the responses has been used to put 

forward the proposed increase seen above at 2.10 as this has been deemed as a 
balanced and reasonable increase. 

 
3.13 The data shows that the responses from the trade do not call for any major 

changes to the waiting times or extra charges (section 3 (a)-(e) of current fares). 
Therefore, it is recommended that there should be no changes to these parts of 
the fares. 

 
3.14 The neighbouring authority fares have also been considered as well as the most 

expensive national fare and the cheapest national fare in England (Appendix 3).  
These were taken from figures recently published in the Private Hire News in 
June 2020. 

 
3.15 The fare statistics show that the current WHBC’s taxi fares tend to rank our 

prices within the cheapest three in Hertfordshire and Bedfordshire.  In 
comparison nationally we are ranked 244 out of 363 authorities in England. 
 

3.16 If WHBC were to adopt the new fares locally this would place us in the top three 
boroughs for fares in Hertfordshire and Bedfordshire.  Nationally this would move 
us to around position 28 in England. 
 

3.17 It can also be seen that all of the neighbouring licensing authorities have 
reviewed and adopted new fares within the last 7 years, compared to WHBC 
which was last reviewed 12 years ago.  Given that no increases of taxi fares 
have occurred over the last 12 years, and the UK Consumer Price Index has 
increased by approximately 34.31% since 2008, it is reasonable to review the 
request to increase the fares. 
 

3.18 Following the consultation process with drivers, the Council can either reject the 
request to advertise the new fare structure and leave the pricing arrangements 
as they are or they can approve the recommendation in this report. 
 
 

3.19 To accept the request and change both components of the fare by the 
amounts proposed below, at the same time from a date to be agreed would 
mean:- 
 

 A component decrease in distance to 525 yards for and component 
increase in price to £3.00 for Part 1 A and B of the fare chart.  

 

 A component decrease in distance to 150 yards for Part 1 C. 

 

 Part 1 D to remain the same at 0.20 pence. 

3.20 If the new proposed fares are accepted then the fees must be advertised to the 
public for 14 days to allow for objections.  If no objections are received then the 
new fare structure will automatically be granted from the proposed 
implementation date. 

Page 25



- 4 - 

3.21 If objections are received after advertisement of the proposed fare structure then 
the Council will have to hold a hearing to allow for any objections to be heard. 

 

Implications 

4 Legal Implication(s) 

4.1 Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council is the hackney carriage licensing 
authority for its district, and it is required to have licensing policies which are 
legally compliant and fit for purpose. 

4.2  This Authority is also legally required to determine and implement a taxi fares 
pricing structure. This structure should be appropriate to permit a taxi trade to 
exist in the area whilst being reasonable for those who may wish to use the 
services. 

 
4.3 Fares can be set using the powers and mechanisms contained in the Local 

Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 (LG (MP) A 1976) under 
Section 65. 

5 Financial Implication(s) 

5.1 After an initial implementation phase, for example, responding to the 
  consultation followed by a period of acceptance by those affected by the 

changes, the proposed new taxi fares are not expected to have a significant 
impact on the resources required to effectively manage or regulate the Taxi and 
Private Hire Vehicle sectors of WHBC. 

 
5.2 The fares are paid directly to drivers from customers and the fares do not 

generate an income stream for the Council. 
 
6. Risk Management Implications 

The risks related to this proposal are: 

6.1 By failing to permit a reasonable taxi fare structure, WHBC would run the risk of 
licensing a non-viable local taxi trade. If the permitted fares were too low, the taxi 
trade would deteriorate and possibly cease, with the associated negative impact 
on the local community who depend on taxis. In this void, taxis from outside of 
WHBC would be sought, and as these would be licensed by other authorities, this 
authority would have little or no regulatory control over them. If the permitted 
fares were too high, this would encourage passengers to seek alternative 
transport, which may lead to the demise of the trade licensed by this authority; 
again having a deleterious impact on our communities. The provisions set out in 
the proposed new taxi fares seek to mitigate these risks. 
 

6.2 It should also be considered that should the fares be set too high this again may 
result in the local community seeking cheaper transport so there must be a 
reasonable balance, which has again been sought to be mitigated in the 
proposed new fares. 

 

7.0 Security and Terrorism Implication(s) 

7.1 There are no security and terrorism implications to report. 

Page 26



- 5 - 

 

8.0  Procurement Implication(s) 

8.1 There are no procurement implications to report. 

 
9.0 Climate Change Implication(s) 

9.1 As can be seen at paragraph 6, this report seeks to mitigate further influx of out 
of area drivers which may add to the vehicle emissions in the area. 

10. Human Resources Implication(s) 

10.1 There are no human resources implications, any changes and literature can be 
completed by the existing Hackney Carriage team. 

11 Health and Wellbeing Implication(s) 

11.1 There would be an impact on the wellbeing of drivers due to better financial 
stability. 

11.2 Health and wellbeing of the community would be better served by local drivers 
rather than out of area. 

12 Communication and Engagement Implication(s) 

12.1 Any revised fares would need to be published correctly as per the LG (MP) A 
1976 to ensure fair process. 

12 Link to Corporate Priorities 

12.1 The subject of this report is linked to the Council’s Corporate Priorities “our 
council”, “our environment”, “our economy” and “our council” and is linked to 
statutory provisions under hackney carriage and equality legislation.  

13 Equality and Diversity 

13.1 An EqIA was not completed because this report does not propose changes to 
existing service-related policies or the development of new service-related 
policies. 

 
Name of author Cheryl Bridges 
Title Regulatory Support Officer 
Date 17 June 2020 
 

Appendices attached 

Appendix 1 Current Fares table 

Appendix 2 Data collection table 

Appendix 3 National fares comparison table 

Appendix 4 Proposed New Fares table 

Page 27



- 6 - 

 

APPENDIX 1 

 

Maximum Authorised Fares 
                                           (Operative as of the 1

st
 of September 2008) 

1. Mileage                                                                   
A. If the distance does not exceed 900 yards            (a) For a hiring commenced between    

(825 metres) for the whole distance                           11pm and 7am 
                                                         £2-50.                                                         + 50% 
 
B. If the Distance exceeds 900 yards                        (b) For a hiring on Sunday between 

(825 metres) for the first 900 yards                            7am and midnight and between 
(825metres)                                     £2-50                  7pm and midnight Christmas and 

                                                                                           New Years Eve                + 50% 
C. For each subsequent 170 yards                            

 (155 metres) or part thereof          D. 20p            (c) For hiring on any Bank Holiday, 
                                                                                        (Except Christmas and Boxing Day) 

                                                                                                                +50% 
2. Waiting Time                                   
 At a rate of 40p for each minute   
                                                                               (d) For hiring on Christmas and  
3. Extra Charges                                                     Boxing Day and between midnight  
Licensed vehicles MAY NOT charge Per                   and 7am New Years Day  
Passenger or rates other than those                                                                   +100% 
Set out in the following paragraphs 
                                                                               (e) For fouling of the vehicle by 
                                                                                    Passengers or animals in their 
                                                                                    Charge                               £100.00 
 
COMPLAINTS CAN BE MADE TO THE HACKNEY CARRIAGE OFFICE at COUNCIL OFFICES, 
CAMPUS EAST, WELWYN GARDEN CITY AL8 6AE. Tel. 01707 357982 
                            
  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 28



- 7 - 

 

APPENDIX 2 

 Driver 
Number 

Distance
< in yds 

 Price 
in £ 

Distance 
> in yds 

 Price 
in £  

Each 
Subsequent 
yds 

 Price 
in £ 

 2 Mile 
Total in £ 

 5 Mile 
Total in £ 

10 Mile 
Total in £ 

                    

104 550   3.00  550 
      
3.00  550 

      
0.30  4.62 7.50 12.30 

 
235 500 

     
2.50  500 

     
2.50  100 

     
0.30  11.56 27.40 53.80 

 
012     500 

    
2.50  170 0.40  9.61 22.03 42.74 

 
077 525 

    
2.50  525 

      
2.50  150 0.20  6.49 13.53 25.27 

 
219 500 

     
2.50  500 

      
2.50  150 0.20  6.53 13.57 25.30 

 
164 525 

    
2.50  525 2.50  150 0.20  6.49 13.53 25.27 

Unknow
n 525 

     
2.50  525 

     
2.50  150 

    
0.20  6.49 13.53 25.27 

 
007 525 

      
2.50  525 2.50  100 0.20  8.49 19.05 36.65 

 
100 900 

      
3.50  900 3.50  170 

     
0.20  6.58 12.79 23.15 

 
006 500 

      
2.50  500 2.50  100 0.30  11.56 27.40 53.80 

 
113 525 

       
2.50  525 2.50  150 

      
0.20  6.49 13.53 25.27 

Unknow
n 500 

      
2.50  500 2.50  100 

      
0.30  11.56 27.40 53.80 

 
137 525 

      
2.50  525 

     
2.50  150 0.20  6.49 13.53 25.27 

 
075 600 

    
3.50  525 2.50  150 0.20  6.49 13.53 25.27 

 
080 900 

     
3.50  900 

   
3.50  170 0.20  6.58 12.79 23.15 

 
065     900 2.50      

    
099 900 

       
3.00  900 3.00  170   0.25  6.85 14.62 27.56 

 
020 900 3.00  900 3.00  170 

      
0.30  7.62 16.94 32.47 

 
085 900 

       
3.50  900 3.50  170 

    
0.30  8.12 17.44 32.97 

 
016 900 3.50  900 3.50      

    
052 900 

      
3.50  900 3.50  170 0.30  8.12 17.44 32.97 

 
017 900 

      
3.00  900 3.00  170 0.20  6.08 12.29 22.65 

 
012 900 

      
3.00  900 3.00  170 

    
0.30  7.62 16.94 32.47 

Page 29



- 8 - 

 
100 900 

      
3.50  900 

       
3.50  170 0.30  8.12 17.44 32.97 

 
209 900 3.00  900 3.00  170 0.20  6.08 12.29 22.65 

265 900 3.00  900 3.00  170 0.25  6.85 14.62 27.56 

 
005 900 

   
2.75  900 

   
2.75  170 0.25  6.60 14.37 27.31 

 
029 525 3.00  525 3.00  150 0.20  6.99 14.03 25.77 

068 525 
      
3.00  525 3.00  170   0.20  6.52 12.74 23.09 

084 525 3.00  525 3.00  150 0.20  6.99 14.03 25.77 

 
305 525 3.20  525 3.20  150 

      
0.20  7.19 14.23 25.97 

218             
   

057 525  3.00  525 3.00  150 0.20  6.99 14.03 25.77 

028 525  3.00  525 3.00  150 0.20  6.99 14.03 25.77 

233 525 2.50  525 
   
2.50  150 0.20  6.49 13.53 25.27 

303 525 3.00  525 
     
3.00  150 0.20  6.99 14.03 25.77 

118 900 3.00  900 3.00      
   

145 525 3.00  525 
   
3.00  150 0.20  6.99 14.03 25.77 

073 525 3.00  525 3.00  150 0.20  6.99 14.03 25.77 

306 601  3.00  601 3.00  170 0.30  8.15 17.47 33.00 

HCD293 900 3.50  900 3.50  170 0.30  8.12 17.44 32.97 

158 900 3.50  900 3.50  170 0.30  8.12 17.44 32.97 

091 525   3.00  525 3.00  170 0.20  6.52 12.74 23.09 

039 525 3.00  525 3.00  150 0.20  6.99 14.03 25.77 

189 900 3.50  900 3.50  170 0.20  6.58 12.79 23.15 

205 900 2.80  900 2.80  150 0.20  6.29 13.33 25.07 

046 900 3.50  900 3.50      
   

002 550 3.00  550 3.00  150 0.30  8.94 19.50 37.10 

Unknow
n 900 3.50  900 3.50  170 0.30  8.12 17.44 32.97 

072 900 3.50  900 3.50  170 0.20  6.58 12.79 23.15 

Page 30



- 9 - 

226 900   3.50  900 3.50      
   Unknow

n 900   2.80  900 2.80  170 0.30  7.42 16.74 32.27 

066 525 3.00  525 3.00  150 0.20  6.99 14.03 25.77 

074 900  3.75  900 3.75  170 0.90  17.62 45.57 92.16 

055 900 4.00  900 4.00  170 
   
0.25  7.85 15.62 28.56 

044 560 3.00  560 
     
3.00  170 0.30  8.22 17.54 33.07 

003 700  3.50  700 
     
3.50  170 0.30  8.48 17.79 33.32 

096 900 
      
2.90  900 3.10  170 0.30  7.72 17.04 32.57 

186 900 
      
2.80  900 3.20  170 0.30  7.82 17.14 32.67 

Ali 525 
    
2.50  525 

      
2.50  150 0.20  6.49 13.53 25.27 

                    

           Average   
 £      
7.60  

 £   
16.19   £   30.51  

           Median   
 £      
6.99  

 £   
14.03   £   25.77  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 31



- 10 - 

 

APPENDIX 3 

 

NATIONAL TARIFFS COMPARISONS 
   

 

2 MILE FARE 
LAST 
RISE 

POSITION NATIONALLY 
(363) 

 LONDON (HEATHROW) £11.40 2020 1 Most expensive 

LUTON AIRPORT £9.20 2014 2 
 LONDON  £8.60 2020 3 
 WATFORD £8.40 2017 4 
 HERTSMERE £7.00 2014 22 
 NORTH HERTS £6.60 2018 68 
 STEVENAGE £6.40 2017 99 
 DACORUM £6.30 2014 109 
 ST ALBANS £6.20 2014 135 
 EAST HERTS £6.10 2018 145 
 LUTON  £6.00 2014 174 
 WELWYN HATFIELD £5.70 2008 244 
 BEDFORD £5.26 2013 312   

MIDDLESBOROUGH £4.30 2012 358 Cheapest 

     HERTS AND BEDS 
     

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 32



- 11 - 

 

APPENDIX 4  

 

Maximum Authorised Fares 
                                           (Operative as of the 1

st
 of December 2020) 

1. Mileage     3.   Extra Charges                                                
 

A. If the distance does not 
exceed 525 yards (480 
metres) for the whole 
distance 

 
 
 
£3.00 

Licensed vehicles MAY 
NOT charge per passenger 
or any rates other than 
those set out in the 
following paragraphs: 
 
 

(a) For a hiring commenced 
between 11pm and 7am 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
+ 50% 
 

B. If the distance exceeds 525 
yards (480 metres) for the 
first 525 yards (480 metres) 

 
 
 
£3.00 

(b) For a hiring on Sunday 
between 7am and midnight 
and between 7pm and 
midnight Christmas and 
New Year’s Eve 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
+ 50% 
 

C. For each subsequent 150 
yards (137 metres) or part 
thereof 

 
 
D. 20p 

        (c)  For hiring on any Bank 
              Holiday, (Except 
              Christmas and Boxing 
              Day) 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
+ 50% 

 
2. Waiting Time 

 
At a rate of 40p for each 
minute 

  
(d) For hiring on Christmas and 

Boxing Day and between 
midnight and 7am New 
Year’s Day 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
+ 100% 

  
 
 

(e) For fouling of the vehicle by 
passengers or animals in 
their charge up to: 
 

 
 
 
£100 

 
 

COMPLAINTS CAN BE MADE TO THE HACKNEY CARRIAGE OFFICE at COUNCIL OFFICES, 
CAMPUS EAST, WELWYN GARDEN CITY AL8 6AE. Tel. 01707 357982 
Please note telephone calls are recorded for quality and training purposes. 
                            

 

 

Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank



- 1 - 

Part I 
Main author: Janet Pilbeam  
Executive Member: Cllr Tony Kingsbury 
Not Ward Specific 

        
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
COUNCIL– 17TH SEPTEMBER 2020 
REPORT OF THE HUMAN RESOURCES MANAGER 

APPOINTMENT OF INTERIM CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

1 Executive Summary 

1.1. This report seeks the Council’s ratification of the recommendation from the 
appointments panel convened to appoint an interim Chief Executive/Head of Paid 
Service from within the council, for a period of up to twelve (12) months. 

2 Recommendation(s) 

2.1 That the Council ratifies the recommendation of the appointments panel that Ka 
Ng be appointed to the position of interim Chief Executive and Head of Paid 
Service, following the conclusion of the appointments process. 

2.2 That the appointment be confirmed and remunerated in accordance with the 
Council’s approved salary scale for the Chief Executive.  

2.3 That the Head of Resources be appointed as the interim Chief Finance Officer as 
defined by section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972, commensurate with 
the period of appointment for the interim Chief Executive. 

2.4 That delegated authority be given to the Human Resources Manager, in 
consultation with the Leader of the Council, to finalise all the arrangements 
required, including the starting date for the interim Chief Executive. 

2.5 That delegated authority be given to the Human Resources Manager to update 
the council’s Pay Policy Statement accordingly and to arrange for its publication. 

3 Explanation 

3.1 The council’s current Chief Executive is leaving the council to work at another 
authority, resulting in a vacancy for Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council.  

3.2 In consultation with all three Group Leaders and Cabinet, it was agreed that the 
vacant post would be best filled by an interim appointment at this time.  

3.3 This is to provide stability during the current challenges and debates in 
Hertfordshire with regards to local government re-organisation and devolution.  

3.4 The proposal is to appoint an interim Chief Executive from within the council for 
up to 12 months. In order to do so, an appointments panel was convened for the 
recruitment process. The Human Resources Manager was designated as the 
lead officer for this process.  

3.5 The appointments panel comprised the Leader, Deputy Leader, all Cabinet 
members, Leader of the Labour Group and Leader of the Liberal Democrat 
Group. An external advisor was also available to the panel. 

Page 35

Agenda Item 11



- 2 - 

3.6 The recruitment process has now concluded. Following the conclusion of the 
process, the appointments panel gave full consideration to all the candidates and 
agreed unanimously to recommend that Ka Ng be appointed as the council’s 
interim Chief Executive. 

3.7 Under the Local Authorities (Standing Orders) (England) Regulations 2001 (as 
amended), in relation to the appointment of a Head of Paid Service, all executive 
members of the Council must be given an opportunity to object to the proposed 
recommendation for the appointment. In this case all executive members were 
involved in the appointment and were unanimous in agreeing to the 
recommendation. 

3.8 In accordance with the Local Government and Housing Act 1989, the Council 
must make the actual appointment of the Head of Paid Service. 

3.9 In accordance with the Constitution, this role is also the Electoral Registration 
Officer and Returning Officer in respect of electoral matters, including the 
conduct of elections. 

3.10 As the Corporate Director (Resources, Environment and Cultural Services) is 
currently the council’s appointed Chief Finance Officer as defined by section 151 
of the Local Government Act 1972, a new interim appointment is required. This is 
because a Head of Paid Service cannot also hold the role of Chief Finance 
Officer within the council. 

3.11  Accordingly, it is recommended that the Head of Resources, is appointed to the 
Chief Finance Officer post, commensurate with the period of appointment for the 
interim Chief Executive.  

3.12 As the Head of Resources is currently the Deputy Chief Finance Officer, it is 
proposed that this role is taken on by the Service Manager (Financial Services), 
commensurate with the period of appointment for the interim Chief Executive.  

Implications 

4 Legal Implication(s) 

4.1 As contained within the body of this report. 

5 Financial Implication(s) 

5.1 The remuneration of the interim Chief Executive will be in accordance with the 
council’s approved salary scale for this post.  

5.2 The Head of Resources will receive a fixed payment of £5000 per annum, pro 
rata for the duration of this financial year. This will be met from within existing 
budgets. 

5.3 The Service Manager (Financial Services) will receive a fixed payment of £3000 
per annum, pro rata for the duration of this financial year. This will be met from 
within existing budgets.  

5.4 The cost of the external advisor was met from within existing budgets. 

6 Risk Management Implications 

6.1 There are no inherent risks in the subject matter of this report. 

Page 36



- 3 - 

7 Security and Terrorism Implication(s) 

7.1 There are no security and terrorism implications inherent in relation to the 
proposals in this report. 

8 Procurement Implication(s) 

8.1 There are no procurement implications inherent in relation to the proposals in this 
report. 

9 Climate Change Implication(s) 

9.1 There are no climate change implications inherent in relation to the proposals in 
this report. 

10 Human Resources Implication(s) 

10.1 The Human Resources Manager has been the lead officer for this process and 
has acted in accordance with the council’s relevant statutory and policy 
requirements. 

11 Health and Wellbeing Implication(s) 

11.1 There are no health and wellbeing implications inherent in relation to the 
proposals in this report. 

12 Communication and Engagement Implication(s) 

12.1 Subject to council approval, the appointment will be reported in accordance with 
the usual procedures. 

13 Link to Corporate Priorities 

13.1 The subject of this report is linked to the Council’s Corporate Priority  
Our Council, and specifically to the achievement of Value for Money, and is 
linked to a statutory requirement under stated legislation in this report. 

14 Equality and Diversity 

14.1 An EqIA was not completed because this report does not propose changes to 
existing service-related policies or the development of new service-related 
policies. 

 
 
Name of author Margaret Martinus 01707357575 
Title Head of Law and Administration 
Date 17 September 2020 
 
 

 
 

Background papers to be listed:  

Not applicable  

Appendices to be listed  

Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank



- 1 - 

Part I 
Main author: Rob Bridge 
For resolution 

 
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
COUNCIL – 17 SEPTEMBER 2020 
REPORT OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT AND HOUSING ACT 1989-APPOINTMENT OF 
INDEPENDENT REMUNERATION PANEL MEMBERS  

1 Executive Summary 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to seek Council’s agreement to appoint Independent 
Remuneration Panel members to the Council’s panel. 

2 Recommendation(s) 

2.1 That Council agrees to the appointment of R Atterton, K Cole and P Legood as 
members of the council’s Independent Remuneration Panel. 

2.2 That Council agrees to confirm the continued appointments of P Raynsford and 
D Tabraham-Palmer, as members of the council’s Independent Remuneration 
Panel. 

3 Explanation 

3.1 By law, the Council, in making a scheme for the payment of Members’ 
allowances, must establish and maintain an Independent Remuneration Panel 
(IRP). The statutory minimum number of IRP members required to sit on a panel 
are three and there is no maximum number. The current panel consists of three 
members. 

3.2 The Council, in making or amending its scheme, is under a legal obligation to 
‘have regard’ to any recommendations of the IRP, in reaching its decision. 

3.3 The Council’s IRP was last appointed by Council in 2012 and since then, the 
arrangements have worked well. 

3.4 One panel member at the start of this year, indicated their retirement from the 
panel. 

3.5 The role was first advertised in February 2020 but unfortunately, there was 
limited interest at the time. Some feedback was received that a reason for this 
was that the role was unpaid and attracted no remuneration. However, officers 
pursued various other methods to encourage applications for this role, without 
the need to request from Council an agreement to pay remuneration at this 
stage. A second round of advertising took place in July 2020. Officers were 
pleased to receive sufficient applications on this occasion and applicants were 
interviewed by a panel of senior officers. 

3.6 The senior officer panel consisted of the Corporate Director (Public Protection, 
Planning and Governance), Monitoring Officer and Governance Services 
Manager. 

3.7 The senior officer panel recommends the appointments in this report. The quality 
of the applications was so high that the officer panel are recommending three 
appointments to the panel. 

Page 39

Agenda Item 12



- 2 - 

3.8 The other two existing IRP Members have indicated their wish to remain on the 
panel and their re-appointment to the panel is also recommended. 

3.9 This would increase the panel to five members. It is proposed that the panel size 
is so increased, with a quorum of three. It is currently anticipated that the panel 
meetings will be held remotely. 

Implications 

4 Legal Implication(s) 

4.1 The statutory requirements are contained at section 18 of the Local Government 
and Housing Act 1989 and Part 4 of The Local Authorities (Members’ 
Allowances) (England) Regulations 2003. 

5 Financial Implication(s) 

5.1 As the role is currently unpaid and attracts no allowances (other than re-
imbursement of travel expenses), there are no financial implications associated 
with this appointment. 

6 Risk Management Implications 

6.1 The risks related to this proposal are: 

6.2 If the Council is unable to appoint sufficient members to form the IRP Panel, it 
would not be possible to review and amend the Scheme of Members’ 
Allowances. 

7 Security and Terrorism Implication(s) 

7.1 Not applicable. 

8 Procurement Implication(s) 

8.1 Not applicable. 

9 Climate Change Implication(s) 

9.1 Not applicable. 

10 Human Resources Implication(s) 

10.1 Not applicable. 

11 Health and Wellbeing Implication(s) 

11.1 Not applicable. 

12 Communication and Engagement Implication(s) 

12.1 The Council is required to publish any recommendation made to it by the IRP in a 
prescribed way. 

13 Link to Corporate Priorities 

13.1 The subject of this report is linked to the Council’s Corporate Priority  
Our Council, and specifically to the achievement of Value for Money, and is 
linked to a statutory requirement under stated legislation in this report. 

Page 40



- 3 - 

14 Equality and Diversity 

 
14.1. An EqIA was not completed because this report does not propose changes to 

existing service-related policies or the development of new service-related 
policies. 

 
 
 
Name of author M Martinus 01707357575 
Title Head of Law and Administration and Monitoring Officer 
Date 4 September 2020 
 
 
 
Background papers to be listed (if applicable)   

Advertisement and Application pack for the role. 

Appendices to be listed: 

None 

Page 41



This page is intentionally left blank



 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 
(Note: Proposed new appointments are shown in green on this list). 

 
 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 
(Constitution: 13 Members) 
(ratio 6:4:3) 
 
 

M. Birleson  

L. Chesterman (VC) 

M. Cowan 

S. Elam (VC) 

B. Fitzsimon 

G. Hayes 

M. Holloway 

R. Lass 

D. Richardson 

P. Smith 

S. Thusu 

S. Wrenn (C) 

P. Zukowskyj 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

Co-opted Members:- 

Tenants’ Panel Representatives 

To be appointed 
 

Page 43

Agenda Item 13



(Note: Proposed new appointments are shown in green on this list). 

 

CLIMATE CHANGE SUB-GROUP  
 
(Constitution: 7 Members) 
(ratio 3:2:2) 
 

E. Boulton 

M. Holloway (C) 

F. Marsh 

H. Quenet 

D. Richardson 

J. Weston 

S. Wrenn 

 
 

Page 44


	Agenda
	7 QUESTIONS BY MEMBERS
	8 NOTICE OF MOTION
	9 WELWYN HATFIELD COUNCIL RESPONSE TO COVID-19 PANDEMIC
	10 REVIEW OF HACKNEY CARRIAGE FARES
	11 APPOINTMENT OF THE INTERIM CHIEF EXECUTIVE
	12 APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT REMUNERATION PANEL MEMBERS
	13 APPOINTMENTS TO COMMITTEES AND GROUPS

